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COC7.NTERSTAT~[~TP OF THE ISSUES P'RESENIED F~2 REVT~1

I. ~~ether the District Court properly exercised its broad discretion in

ordering appellant Fo rn►a to disgorge $1,023,375 on the basis of flagrant

violations both of registration and antifrau3 regulations promulgated order

the Commodity F~xchange Act?

2. `~ihether the appellant has failed to show that the District Court's

fir~ling that Fo~na's ill-gotten gains amounted to $1,023,375 was clearly

erroneous?
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PRELIMINARY STATE'4ENT

Ap~allant Sohn ~o~►na ("~'nrma"), ~efe~ant below, reeks reversal of a May

8, 1935 jud~nt ordering him to disgorge $1,023,375, the income he received

in 1977 fran co-~~fer?~3ant Britistl American Commodity Options Corp. ("BOO"), a

corporation khen enc~ eci in the marketing and sale of London canmodity cyptions

( "I~oridon optio~?s~') 1~ of which Mro Fornia coos the sole shareholder and chief

opera~irYg otfzcero ~ornna was orc~~r~3 to disgorge this income because he and

BAC9 were fouur~ to have engaged in a fraudulent business operation from

December 9, I976 throug4~ Sep~~mber 7, 1977 in violation of the Co~runodity

sutures Trading Ccxnmission°s (the "Co~issioe~" og "CFA") antifraud options

regulat~.on~ ~7 C.FaRo ~ 3209 (1977). 'I~e disgorgement order was also bad

upon fsr~aings that, from January Z~, 1977 through September 7, 1377 (when BOO

cased b~us~ness o~erations~ , Fornba aided and abetter3 ~0 in acting as an

op~.Yor~s broker v~itho~zt having been grarbtecl registration as a futures

commission r~rci~an~. ("~°O~i") by the Commission, in violation of the FCM

registeation requirements of Commission Regulations 32.3(a) and (b), 17 C.FmR.

~ c ity option grants the purchaser the right, but not the obligation,
c3~srgnq a ~~.x~ a~ s~c~fi~ periac3 of time, to buy ("call") or sell ("put") a
s~eci~ic c~.ty futures contract or physical canrt►a9ity. Lorx3on options of
tt~e type soTicite~ and so~c~ by appellant Forma related to futures contracts
tr~~ ors ~ T.~or~don c odify marketso F`or a thorough description of the
c°rsarac~erist~cs arx3 market mecf~anics of camtodi~y options, see this Court's
opinion in ~ri~~s~ P~nnerican Cc~no~ity Options CArp, v. Bagley, 552 F`.2d 482,
~8~-85 (2d Cire 1977), cert. denied, 434 U.S. 398 (1977); see also Car~nodity
Futures TY~ing C~anmission v.— r—it sh Arrferican C~rnnodity Op~ons Corp, et al.,
[197'7-T980 Transfer Binder] C~ran. Ftiit. L. gyp. (OCEi) x 20,662, a~ 22,699
(SaD.i~eY, 19'78 a (Gagliardi, J. )
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~~ 32.3(a) grid (b) (1977)

The evidentiary bases for the District Court's findings of ~mregistered

brokerage activities arr3 pervasive fraudulent conduct may be fourr.~ in its

August 31, 1978 opinion in Ca~csdity Futures Trading Can~ttission v. British

American Cc~no~ity Gptions Corp., et al., [1977-1980 Transfer Binder] Comm.

Fut. L. gyp. (CCH) ~ 20,662. In that opinion, the District Court ordered the

imposition of a receivership to prevent the waste of any proceeds obtained kyy

BACO arul Forma in the course of their unregistered FC'N! activities aril their

fraex7ulent and deceptive options scheme, and to aid in the computation of

damages incurred by tt~ it unlawful conduct. The Court also provided for

specific orders of disgorgea~ent to be made upon particularized applications

therefor. Forma has not, in arsy of the supplementary proceedings before the

District Court or in this appeal, challenger3 the evidentiary bases for the

District Court°s findings in its 1978 or~inion that BP,~O ana Forn~a flagrantly

violated the registration ar~3 antifraud regulations promulgatQc7 under Section

4c(b) of the Cavity bcCharyge Act (the "Act"), 7 U.S.C. ~ 6C(b) (1977).

2/ In Section 2(a)(1) of the Camnodity acchange Act (the "Act"), 7 U~S.C. g 2
(Supt. Va 1976), the term "futures com►nission merchant" is defined to include

individuals, partnerships, corporations, and trusts engaged in soliciting
or accepting or8ers fog the purchase or sale of any cammodity for future
~elzver~ on or subject to the rules of any contract market and that, in
or in connection with such solicitation or acceptance of orders, accepts
any money, securities, or property (or extends credit in lieu thereof) to
margin, guarantee, or secure any trades or contracts that result or may
result therefrom.

For a discussion of this rarovision's application to option transactions, see
3ritish American Catamoc3ity motions Corp. v. Bagley, [1975-1977 Transfer
Binder) Cain. ~'ut. L. l~po (CCH) ~ 20,245, at 21,334 (S.D.N.Y. Dec. 21, 1976)
(Knapp, ~.9 (sustaining Commission Regulation 32.3 which required persons,
like BA~O, offering commodity options to the public to be registered as an FCM
under the Apt aftcer January 17v 1977.)



Ra them Fo Ana argues here, as he did before the District Court, that the 1978

evic3eratiary findings, coupled with the sursplementary evidence presented by the

Commission (through subsequent depositions held to determine the appropriate

amount of ~iegorgenen~ to be made by Fa rnoa), are insufficient to sustain an

order directing Fo rnia to disgon~e $1,023,375, all the income he received fran

S~0 as compensation during 1977.

As will be shown, infra, the record of this proceeding amply demonstrates

that di~garg nt is both a necessary and appropriate remedy to deprive Forma

of unlawful proceeds derived from ~mregistered FQ~I activities arm fraud, and

to 3eter future such violations by F~'orn~a arY3 others. The evfdence also

clearly shows that the income Forn~a received from 8AC0 in 1977 is a proper

measure of disgorgement in this proceeding. Accordingly, the District Court's

flay 8, 1985 ~udc~nent ordering Forma to disgorge $1,023,375, should be affirmed

in all respects.

COUNTERSTATII~IE[JP 0~' THE CASE ~'

A. 'llze Commission° s Authority 7.b Regulate ~e Marketing Andes/
Sale Of Gomrnodity Options And Zb Seek Er.~uitabl~ ReY~ef
~'~r Violations 0£ Its Ebegulations

Ire 1974, Congress substantially revised the Co~nodity Exchange Hct to

cr~at~ the Ccx~tiissian as an independent agency of the United States to

ac~inister and enforce the Acct°s provisions. See Section 2(a)(2) of the Act,

7 U.SoC. ~ 4a (S~ipp. V, 1975). The 1974 amendments: (1) expanded the Act's

coverage to inclur3e previously unregulated catunoaities,3~ (2) increased

From 1936 through 1974, only tF~ specifically enumerated conuradities in
Section 2(a) of the Act were subject to regulation by the Cameodity Exchange
Act, as amended. Options on these camiodities wire bat~necl throughout this
(Footnote continued)
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substantially the iaw enforcement povaers previously held by the Commission's

predecessor agency; and (3) vests the Commission with exclusive regulatory

juri~ictior~ and plenary rulem~kieig authority aver catvnodity option

transacti~rr~. S~c~i~ns 2(aj(1) and 4c(b) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. §5 2, 6c(b)

{S~pp. V, 1975 4~ .~ relevant here, Section 4c(b) of the Acct made illegal

tt~e offer o~ sale of any carx~todity option that is

contrary to arsy rule, regulation or order of the Cam-
m~ssiori ca~:ahib~.tirig as~y such transaction or allowing
any such ~ransact~on u~cler any such terms and condi-
~ions as the Commission shall prescribe .

~iarsuant to this statutory grant of authority to regulate all phases

of ca~nodity opta.or~ transactions, the Ccxronissi~n adopted Part 32 of its

Reg~xlatior~s, 17 C.F~Re Part 32 (1977). emulation .32.3 prohibits any firm,

s~sch as ~c~O, on or af'cer ,yanuary I7, 1977, £torn actirx3 as a ca~nodit~ options

broker ~m1.~ss registered with ~h~ Commission a~ an FQ~t. 17 C.F.R. § 32.3

(1977). ~cju~atiora 32.3 makes it unlabvful for any person in connection with

the solici~atior~ ~r sale of any option transaction, inter alia, to cheat,

defra~3 or deceive any other arson by any means whatsoever. 17 C.F.R. ~ 32.9

~~~~a).

Z~ ~da~tion ~o fhis plenary authority to regulate cata7t~odity options,

Congress in 1974 authorized the Commission to institute actians in U.S.

~ra~a ~~ ~c~tron 4c of t}~e Comity F change Act of 1 36, Pub. L. No.
b75, 7th Congo 2d Sess., 49 Stat. 1492 (1936).

4/ ~e I97~t am~n3ments authorized the Commission to regulate or ban options
on c~revious~y unr~g~ated cart~nodities, see Section 402 of tt~e Cannodity
F'~tca~e~ ira~ u~g Commission Act of 1974, Pub. L. No. 463, 93d Cor~g. 2d Sess.,
88 Stato 1389 (?974), but continued the ban on options trac~ir~g in the
c~madi~fes listed ua Section 2(a) of the Act. See Section 4c(a) (~) of tl~ae
pct, 7 U.SoC~ § 6c(a)(~3) (S~. V~ 1975); see also British American Camnodit
OQtions vo ~3ag ley, 552 ~'~2d 482, 486 (2d Cir. 1977}, cert. dens , 3 U.S.
938 (1977)0



District Courts +~o enjoin any practice in violation of the Acct, or any rule,

regulation or order thereur~er. Section 6c of the Act, 7 U.S.C. S 13x-1

(1976). ~4-iis Court has observed that this injunctive authority is in all

material respects similar to Section 21(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934, 15 U.S.C. ~ ~8u(e), and Section 20(b) of the Securities Acct of 1933, 15

v. S.C. § 77t(b), ar~d that case law developed under tt~o~e sections of the

securities laws is pertinent too cases under Section 6c of the Commodity

~cchange Act. CFTC v. British American Camrnaiity~ ns, 560 F.2d 135, 141

n.11 (2d Cir. ].977). bus Section 6c of the Act authorizes, in addition bo

injunctive re3.ief, appropriate ancillary Pquitable relief, including disgorge-

ment. C~'Z~ v. Hunt, 591 1~.2d 1211, 1222-23 (7th Cir. 1979); CFTC v. CoPetro

A~rketing Grou~a, Inc., 502 F. Supp. 806, 819 (C.T~. Cal. 1980), aff'd, 680 F.2d

573 f9th Ciro 1982); CFZC v. U.S. Metals Depository Co., 468 F. Supp. 1149,

1163 (S. D.N. Y. 1979) (Weinfeld, J.).5~

Bo Other Pertinent Litigation Involving The Comanission and BP,~O

In October, 1975, John Forma, acting through BACO, com~nenc~3 operations

as an options broker, marketing arx3 selling London options to the public. In

1976 and 19778 tYae Commiss~.on and BACO became involved in two other judicial

proceedings which, directly or indirectly, affected events in the proceeding

below. 'ilze rr~~aatters at issue in these other proceedings are briefly r~escrfbed

here:

to one Co~nmorlity 2Yading Advisor ("CTA") Litigation

5/ Other carts have recognized that the equitable remedy of restitution is
also authorized ~y Section 6c of the Fact. See C~'T~ v. Skorupskas, 605 F.
Sum. 923, 94~ (~.D. Micho Y985); CF'1C v. Nbrgan, Harris & Scott, Ltd., 484 F.
Sapp. 669, 677 (S. D.N.Y. 1979).
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On duly 22, 1976, the Commission filed a canplaint pursuant t~ Section 6c

of the Act seeking a preliminary a~xl pern~anent injunction against BP,~O, why at

that time wras marketing and selling London options, from violating Section 4m

of the Acf.t~y acting as a commodity trading advisor ("CTA")6~ without being

registered with ~tl~e Commission ~~ The District Court in that action (which

happened to be tt~ same court whose disgorgeaent order is at issue in this

«z~peal) found BACO to be a CTA within the meaning of the CTA registration

req~air~ne~t of fiction 4m of the Act, 7 U.S.C. § 6m (Sapp. V, 1975). Even

though the Co~ranission had made a rima facie showing that B~A~O was rendering

tradirx~ a~rice while unregistered, the District Court ruled that it could in

its discretion decline to grant an injunction because of concern for BACO's

business, which had grown substantially in its first year of operation,

because the Commission had root presented any evidence that BACO hac7 canmitted

a wrong connected with fraud or similar miscor~uct, and because, in its view,

6/ In Section 2 (a) (1) of the Apt, 7 tJ. S. C. § 2 (Sapp. V, 1975) , "ca~nor3ity
trying advisor" with sane exceptions not relevant here, is defined to include
any r~erson who, for compensation or profit, engages in -the business of
a<3vising others, directly or through publications or writings, as tp the value
~f c~ncnoc3itaes o~ as t~ the value of trading in any canetw~dity for future
delivery on or subject to the rules of any contract market. Before the
Commission's Part 32 regulations became effective, options brokers, like BA~O,
were required to register as CTAs because they were engaged in the business of
advising others as to the value of camnodities. See CF'i~C v. British American
City motions Corp., 560 F.2d 135, 141 (2d Cir. 1977). men Regulation
32.3 becane effective on January 17, 1977, the requirement that options
brokers be registered as FCMs replaced the requirement that they register
separately as a CT~1. See 41 Fedo leg. 51808, 51810 (Nov. 24, 1976).

7/ In March, 1976, TACO did apply for registration as a CTA with the
Cc~mrnission. On April 16, 1976, the Commission instituted an administrative
r~roceedirx~ to deternnine ~ACO's fitness to do business as a CTA becac~e BAf.~'s
principal, president, ar~i sole shareholder, John Forma, had twice been
enjoins-cl by the Securities and Exchange Conenissian ("SEC") fram violatinig the
recar&~iceepirig asx~ net capital requirenents of the Securities Ex~e Acct of
1934.
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mere registration violations alone wnuld not justify an inj~mctior~. CF7.0 v.

Britcish Amerirara Commodity Options Corp., 422 F. Supp. 662, 667-68 (S. D.N.Y.

1976) (Gagliardi, J.).

Ors appeal, this Court reversed, holding that once the Commission has made

a pruna facie showing that a person is violating ar~d is likely to continue

violating the registration requirements of the P,at, an ~.njunction is

marbdatory. CE'2`C v. British American Catmodity Options, 560 F.2d 135 (2d Cir.

1977). In ~ ruling, this ~our~ observed that

Z°he intent of the congressional design is clear; per-
sons engaged in the defined regulated activities within
the cities business are not t,~ operate as such
unless registered, the C.ornmission is charged in the
first instance with determin irg the applicant's quali-
fications ., and the Commission is empowered to
seek injunctive prohibitions against violations of
. registration provisions. Registration is the
kf in in this ~tatut~o machine , ivi the Cara~is-
s~.on the information about partic pants in caanodity
tradinct which it so vitally rectuires to carry out its
other statutory functions of monitorirx~ ar~d enforcing

560 F.2d at 140. (Emphasis ack3ed.)

phis Court also concl~ed that the District Court accorded due weight

to BA~O's business interests, ar~d that, to the extent that BA~O's business

fluo risked through rendering Lmlawful trac9ing ar3vice in an unregistered capa-

ci~y, Bz~CO had been acting at its own peril. 560 F.2d at 143. In this

regard, thgs Court stated: "[a] court of equity is ender no duty 'to protect

illegitimate profits or advance business which is conducted illegally.'"

zd. (C~ta~i~n anittecl.) Accordingly, this Court remanded the case to the

~istrfct CAur~ with a direction to issue a prel urinary injunction. On

Sept~nber 7~ 1977, the preliminary injunction issued, and BA~O shut down all

of its business o~ecations pe rntanently.
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2. ~~ne Bagley Litigation

On November 22, 1976, the Ca~unission adapted specific regaalatory

registration requirements, minirinum financial requirements, and disclosure,

record--keeping, and segregation requiranents applicable to options brokers.

17 C.F.R Part 32 (1977). On November 16, 1976, BP,~O ar~d another plaintiff

canmenced suit in I3. S. District Court for the Southern District of New York

s~~king to enjoin the Car~nission from enforcing these new regulations.

British d~merican C~rnnodity Options CArp. v. Bagley, [1975-1977 Transfer

Binder) Cagan. Fut. L. Aep. (CCH) ~ 20,245 (S. D. N. Y. Dec. 21, 1976) (RnapQ,

J.). In that action, BACO argued that the Cortenission's regulation requiring

options brokers to segregate 90$ of customer funds received in connection with

options purchases subjected BACO to ~c3ue, severe hardship 8~ BACO also

argued that the Commission's promulgation of the FCM registration regulation

was unnxessarily disruptive since the Commission could exclude firms fran the

options E~usiness simply by nod acting on their applications.

While upholding the challenge to the 90$ segregation rule,9~ the District

Court rejected BACO's challenges to the balance of the Commission's new

options rules, inclu8ing the r^G~I registration requirement for options

brokers. On appeal, this Court reversed the District Court's grant of a

preluninary injunction against Commission enforcement of the segregation

8/ BACO also generally alleged that these rules were ac9apted arbitrarily and
capri~inusly, ar~d in violation of the procedural requirements of the
Adm~.nistrative Procedure A,ct ("APA").

9/ Zhe District Court found that the Commission acted with undue haste in
imposing the Hera segregation rule, since it was rbt part of the Cottmission's
original proposed rules. British l~nerican Cammodity_Options Corp. v. Bagley,
[1975-1977 Transfer Binder Cam. Ftiit. L. Rep. (CCH) ~ , 5 at ~f,~~~—
(Qnapp, J.)
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requirement, and affirmed the lower court's denial of an injunction on all

other grounds. British American Canmodity Options Corp. v. Bagley, 552 F.2d

482 (2d Cir. 1977). BACO applied for review of this Court's decision in the

U.S. Supreme Court.

c7n June 14, 1977, this.G~urt granted a stay of the issuance of its marr

date ~n Bagley pending BACO's application to the Supreme Court for a writ of

certiorari on the condition that BACO post a bond in the amount of $250,000,

which B~0 then posted with the District Court. (A42,45)10~ On November 8,

1977, the S~aprane Court denied certiorari. British American Co~nn~adity Options

Corps v. B„ ley,_434 U.S. 938 (1977). The $250,000 bond posted as security in

the fo rnt a~ U.S. Treasaary notes was ordered to remain with the nistrict Court

in the Bagley proceeding until it was determined that all customer claims) against

BACO in this proceeding had been satisfied in the proceeding below. (A43-44)

C. The Proceeding Below

1. ~e Canunissian's Complaint

On 1~pri1 15, 1977, the Goymission filed its original canplaint in this

proceeding 1~ in which the Commission alleged that (i) from ar~d after January

17, 1977, BACO, aided and abetted by Forma, har3 erx~agec7 in the options

business as an unregistered FCM, in violation of ~ 32.3 of the CaYmission's

10/ "(A )" indicates the page number in the appendix where the material
cit~ in this brief appears:

11/ In December, 1976, BACO filed an application for registration as an
FCM. The administrative proceeding commenced on April 16, 1976, to determine
Fo rnia°s fitness as a CI'A, see note 7, supra, was consolidated with another
oroceeciing, ca~nenced January 14, 197't, to determine Fbrma's fitness for
registration as an FC~1. On December 2, 1977, the Ca~nission issued its
opinion ar~d order, finding BA~O unfit for registration as a CTA or FCM.and
denying its applications for registration. In the Matter of British American
Co~rrnodity Options Com., C~"IC Docket Nos. 76-15 77- , slip on~.nion (CFTC
Dec. 2, 1977).
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Regulations; (f i) fram Decenber 9, 1976, BACO, aided' and abetted by Fbrnia, had

conducted a fraudulent options sales scheme, in violation of ~ 32.9 of the

Regulations; and (iii) BACO, aided and abetted by Forma, had wrorx3fully denic~]

the Commission°s staff access bo the books arr.~ records of BP,~O in violation of

32.7 of tkie Regulations. An anended Complaint was filed on June 8, 1977.

(A5-20) ~-2/

In the prayer for relief, the Commission's Panerx3ed C~laint sought

preliminary and. permanent injunctive relief, restrainirx3 the defendants from

further participation in these illegal activities, and also sought, aanorg

other things, the imposition of a receivership, and

an order ciirectirig all defendants to disgorge too the
r~ceYver appointed herein all benefits, including, but
not lunit~edi tom, salaries and ca~►issions, derived dir-
ectly or ir~irectly from the violative activities
r3escribed herein.

{A19) the Cr..~mmission, in its prayer for relief, also sought:

an order establishing a trust over all of the assets of
the defer~ant Forma and prohibiting him ... fram dir-
ectly or irxx~irectly ... dissipating, concealing or
disposing of in any manner, any assets ... of the
defermdants herein.

(A19-20) The Amended Complaint also sought "such other and further relief as

the Court may deterndine ~o ►~e just, equitable ana necessary." (A20)

2. 'Z~ie District Court's Findings Of Fraud .And Other Violations

~'he District Court (Gagliardi, J.) conducted hearings in April and May of

1977 ared s~sequently, the court considered whether the relief sought by

12/ '1~~ original canplaint was amended to add a new paragraph 21(a) which
alleges that BACO and Forma, as well as BA~O's gnploy~ees, engaged in
unautl~rized transactions 'for customer accounts (All)

13/ At these hearings, the Camnission presented john Fornia, arr3 seven
witnesses who h~ purchased options or had received solicitations fran
(Footnote continued)
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the Am~r~ed Cornplain'c was moot because of the injunction issued on Sept~nber

7d 1977 at the direction of this Court in the separate CTA proceec7irg. At the

conclusion of a hearing held on January 23, 1978, the District Gourt ruler3

ti~,t tht~ c~s~ was not mcxt a~ that appropriate equitt►ble relief in the garm

~f a permanent injunctian and the appointment of a receiver should be

granted. When tl~e parties cou3.d rsot agree on the content and scope of the

order, the District Court issued its Opinion of August 31, 1978, CF'iC v.

British A~ecez~ic~n CatBnodity Options Corp. and John Forma, [1977-80] Caren. Fit.

Lo Fop. (CCEi) ~ 20,662 (S.D.N.Y. 1978) (the "1978 Opinion"), which constituted

its fo anal findings of fact and conclusions of law under mod. R Civ. P.

52(a)o (A7~-74)

In ids 197 Opinion, ache District Court found "akaundant ar~3 cor►s~incing

proof ~ha~ bona 8AC0 and John Forn~ had camrnitt~7 flagrant violations of the

~'ut~zres cor~nission r►~rch~nt r~istratic~n requirements ... arbd of the genera3

anti-fra~x3 provisions ...." Id. at 22,697. Specifically, the District Court

~oixnd that B~?~„CO, ~ctinc~ through defendant Forma, sold options to the public

whale unregistered from ,7anuary 17, 1877, until September 7, 1977, the date

of tche injunctia~i against BACO entered in the CTA litigation (see page 8,

supra). `rY►~ ~i~trict Court concluded that BACO and Forma, by selling options

wit:~out having been regs.stered as an FCNI, violated Section 4c(b) of the Act,

anc~ Regulation 32 3 (1976). (A74-75}14/

defendan~sa 'The Cotmnission also intra3uced the transcripts of eight fornier
customers o~ BACO who ~ac~ testified in administrative hearings before the
Commission concerning ~O°s fitness to be registered. Defendants also called
witnesses, a~c7 int~oduc~3 transcript test crony of unavailable witnesses who
had t~stifiec~ in ~.nis~rative hearings. John Fbrma also testified on his
over: be h~I f .

14/ B~CO arxd Fo~na continued their tmregistered motions business after
January 17, 1977 despite notificatiosz from the CFTC on January 14, I977 that
(Foo~nc~te continuue~)
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Entirely apart fran BACO's and Forma's registration violations, the

District Court fourx~ that BA~O ar~d Fornia had engaged in pervasive fraudulent

conduct including "misrepresentations of the risks, guarantees, costs and

market mechanics involved in carrunodity options ir►vesting." (A79) In

particular, the Court found that BACO and Forma, by engaging in "cold

canvassing" telephone solicitations of members ~f the public who had expressed

no prior interest in options investing, had exploited customer ignorance about

the market mechanics of camiodity options trading, exaggerated the probable

returns, un8erstated the general risks involved in options investments, and

misrepresented that performance guarantees protected investors.15~ The Court

further found that both defendants had falsely stated that: (1) BA~O wrras a

"licensed" or "registered" options dealer; (2) BPiCO had a "research

departrnent;" and (3) that BACO was a "long-established Wall Street

institution." BA~O anr3 Fornra were also found too have: (1) failed to disclose

markucys and misrepresented canmission charges; (2) regularly confused

customers about options costs; (3) interchanged references to American dollars

and British pounds without explaining that fluctuation in either of the

currencies could have an effect on profitability; (4) executed options

tr~rasactions without customer authorization; (5) delayed execution of, or

rsfused to execute, customer-authorized transactions; and (6) held out BA~O

r~istration would be withheld pending the outcome of an administrative
fi~raess proceeding, ar~d despite knowledge that their prior judicial challenge
to the validity of F~gulation 32.3's registration requiranent in the B~~a~9leY
litigation discussed at pages 9-10, s ra, had failed. See British Pone c n
Commodity Options Corn. v. Bag ley, 977 Transfer Bier Camn. Flit. L.
Rep. 4CCH) ~ 20,245 (Dec. 21, 1976).

15/ In this regard, the Court found: "Nearly every material element of an
options transaction .appears to have been regularly misrepresented or
left undisclosed i7y defendants [O]eferx3ants did much to obscure and
exploit." Carne. Fut. L. Rep. (CCH) ~ 20,662 at 22,699.
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ernploye~s w1~ li.ttle or no training as options specialists. (A76-79)

with regard to these unlawful activities, the court stated:

f~fendan~s' violations have been extremely serious, often
brazens aru~ constitute precisely the sort of outrageous
abwse of ca~sodity options trading fran which the Act
seeks to protect ircvestArs. ~e violaticros occur-
re~ in ~ regular, organized manner as part of a profes-
sioaaally structured systec~ of business, arx3 cannot be
c►v~racterized as randa~n or isolated incidentso (A80

With ~~specc~ to Forrt~a personall~o the District Court fourx3 that, as chief

officer anc~ so~.e awaner of BACO, Fornia~ (1) maintained close personal

supervision over t'ne daily operations of his business ar~d all financial

devils; {2) s~cifically oversaw the corr.~uct of his telephone salesmen

~h~ooxgh a ~urv~illance ~nonitorir~ system and through immcc~iate supervisors who

reported directly t~ hung (3) failed to take corrective action or to

discipline sales employees who were the subject of nurnerous customer

carnpplaazats; (4) drafted or personally au~.horizea all promotional lit~rat~re;

and ~ 5) appracrec~ ~c~ ~.ssuancp of all recannendations f ram the single employee

responsible for market research. (A80) On these bases, the Cour'c cor~luded

than

~c~rana cis fully aware of the nature of his business, that
t~~ sc~rn~ti~s icrg~ew arx7 at other times had reason tro know
of "he specific frauds being committed in the name, and
to t~ profit, of British P,r~.erican, arx3 that he himself
acts deliberately ~ actively, with knowledge of or
reckless disregard for the truth.

( A8g) 'TP~e Court alseo found that F°orn~a "continued his very profitable options

tradir~ ~rntil enjoined" in the CTA litigation. (A83) (See pages 7-8, supra.}

3. 'Itze District Court's Orders F'or Injunctive,
Restitutionary, And Disgorgement Relief

~as~1 on ~lI of the foregoing, the Court orderer] an injunction against
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future ~riolations of the Commission's options regulations requiring F(~i

registration and proscribing fraudulent conduct, and imposed a receivership to

prevent the Graste of proceeds obtained by both BACO and Forma "in the course

of their unregistered arx3 deceptive options practice." (A83)16~ The Court

z~c~ogr~iz~d that '°[t]he injunctive relief already found appropriate can only

act as a partial enforcement of the Canrnodities Excharx~e Act, since it does

not ren~dy the present fir►anciaT consequences of past fraud and miscorr3uct."

Id, Accordirx~ly~ the ~9istrict ~our~ ruled that "[s]pecific orders to disgorge

profit pt~ay be made upon particularized application to this Court." Id.

Can December 21, 1978, the District Court appofnted Thanes F. Egan, F~q.,

as tan~rary receiver, authorizing Y~inn, inter alia, to serxi claim foams to

former ~3~J custaner~ aril creditors6 an~3 tb file a report with the Court

setting forth all claims filed by customers and creditors with a determination

as ~ ~i~ch claims .wire ~d~~ed ~o ~ valid, due aryd owing. In 1979, appellant

Forma, an k~4lalf of TACO, anti the Commission stipulated to the release of

$250,000 ~n Treasury rtes, posted in the Bagley litigation, to the care of

the Re~e~v~r appointe8 in this proceeding, who redeemed the notes and

c3e~osi~~ them xra interest bearing aecounts. (A44}

On July 29a 1980, the District Court appointed Mr. Dgan permanent

receiver for ~A~O, authorizing him, anang other things, to protect the

interests of, ark to seek restitution for, customers and creditors of BACO,

In/ kl~ho~h tYte District Court found that the Commission did establish a
iv olation of its books arx3 records inspection regulation, 17 C.F. R, g 32.7

ti.977), the ~~rt ~ecl~.ried to fs~vie an injunction against future violations of
phis regulation because of ~ unlikelihood that they weuld recur, given the
Court's deter~irzation t~ appoint a receiver who would take control aver BACO's
hooks and records. (A82) CFTC v. Britis"t~ American Ccxrianodity Optior~s Cotp.,
[1977-1980 TYansfer Birxier] Cater►. fit. L. Rep. (CCH) ~ 20,662 at 22,697,
22,704-OS (S. D. N. Y. 1978) (Gagliardi, J.).
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end to make application for.disgorgernent of unl~vfu~ proceeds realised !~y BA~O

arx3 Forn~a frar~ their violative activities. (A67-68) On August 6, 1982,

Receiver Fgan filed a proposed Final Report seeking distribution too former

B~,CO custaraers on a pra rata basis of $256,594.30 of proceeds attributable to

the Treasury notes, plus accrued interest, B.~O had posted as security in the

Bagley litigation, which then amounted to $387,211.60.1? This report did not

indicate that any inquiry h~3 been conducted into the monetary gain Forma had

derived frcxn his unlawful activities as ~ow~d by the District Court. Nor did

this F~port reccarur~encl dis~on~enen~ fran either BACO or Forma, as the District

Court°s A~ust 31, 1978 Order clearly specified.

4. Proceedings Concerning Bi~org~nent Fran Forma

On October 22, 1982, the Co~mnission filed a Memorarydum with the District

Cour~c c~bjectir~ in part ~a r~ Receiver's proposed Final Report inscyfar as it

d ~ not Lek di~3organent o~ ~'ornla personally $~ (A97-114) Forma, on behalf

of B.~Ca, okaj~cted to the proposed distribution of receivership assets solely

on the ground mat the Deceiver's verified claims procedure was not reliable

proof that each of the customers had been defrauded. (A85-$9) Fbrn~a made no

oajection to the ~3istribution on the grounds that there was insufficient

~vic~ence t~-iat tY~se funds de~ivec~ fr~rt► unlawful conduct co~mnitta3 betw~n

17/ one $256B5R~o30 ultimately distributed after Decsnber 15, 1982 repre-
sent~ a 70~ distribution of $345,074.40 available for customer distribu-
tzon. ~'!ze renaux3er of the $387, 211.60 was either paid, or earmarked for
gayrnenty as legal and administrative expenses of the receivership. {A45-47)
Since 19$2 the proceeds of the $250,000 bond pasted in tlZe Bagley litigation,
with a~crue~3 interest, have increased to approximately $414,000 (including
amounts alre~y c3isLrii~uted to fanner BACO customers in Decenber, 1982).

1~/ ~e Ca~nission did riot object to the portion of the proposed report of
the Receiver that recanmended a 70$ distribution of ~F,C~ assets to former BACO
customers. (A-111)
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D~c~nber 9, 1976 and September 7, 1977. (A85-89)19 On Dece~►ber 9, 1982, the

District Court held a conference to consider the Receiver's proposed Final

Report, and objections filed b~ the parties. On Decenber 15, 1982, both Fbrn~a

aru~ the Cagr6nf.ssion consented too a distribution of the $256,594.30, ~ the

receivership°s verified claimants. (A122-123)

At the District Court's suggestions the Commission deposed Forn~a on

January 14, 198~~ and April T3, 1983. At the January 14, 1983, deposition,

t~ C~enission inquired into the compensation of Forn~a, as sole shareholder,

chief operatirx~ officer, salesman, ar~d enployee, of BA~O from Decanter 9, 1976

through 'Decetaber 31, 197. At this deposition, Mr. Forn~a testified that he

received canpensation from BA~O in the form of ca~a~ifssions, salaries and

manag~►e~~. feesa (A7.31~ I3e further tes~ifi~ that he received no dividerY3s

fr~sm ~3ACOo (A].30} At the April 13, 1983, deposition, Forma produced his 1977

indiv~d~~sl Z~tS tax cet~arn, (P.193-249). This return reflected as irico~ae the

$1,023, 75 Forma received as canpensation from BA~O in 197~.~ The

Carnmissian also inquired into Forma's extant finial circunstances for the

1~/ ~e 1~ceiv~r reporter that 199 former customers of B~ had filed valid
verified proc9f of claims with the receivership. (A40) Z'h2se claims, which
to~al~3 ~1a476,484a10, reflec~eer3 the out-of-pocket losses attributable to
~rad~s (irscl~i~ cat~nission charges} executed by BP,~O on behalf of tie
clairn~nts. (A41)

20f At tYa~ Decanter 9, 1982, conference, counsel for the ~ceiver eacpressecl
ccsncern t~rat groce~ings to calculate, arr3 thereafter to collect, a specific
c~rc~er of dis~org~nent ~ains~ F'~orma might prove costly to the receivership.
dressing phis concern, the Court inquired whether the Cc~nrnission wnuld be
~illirxx~ ~o depose F`orn~a relative to the proper anount of dis~on~ement ar~d
Forma's financial circ~nstances. (A29S-298)

21/ At tP~ Aoril I3 deposition, E~'orn~a also produced a 1977 Wage ar~d Tax
Statement fran B1~G (A162), aril his 1978 individual IRS return (A250-269}
which reflc~ted the $175,995 in ca~ttpensa~ian he received fran BACO in that
yearn (z~250)



purposes of determining the collectibility of a specific order of disgorge-

mentr a coczcern previously expressed by the Receiver: See note 20, supra.

Mr. H'orna testifies during this deposition that he did not recall ;paving any

formal contract or ag~e~rnent with BACO (A139-140).

On May 26, 1983, the Commission filed a Report Concerning Entry of a

Scaecific Order of Disc~orgen~nt Against t~eferxiant John Forn~a, in which it made

~n apg~Iication for di~orgea~ent frcxn i~r. E~orn~a ic~► the amount of $1,211,840,

the entire ~noun~ he receiv~7 as compensation f~~n SAGO since 1Decem~er,

197b. Oral argument was held on the Commission's disgorgenent application on

"4arch 7, 1984. A'c the request of the parties, the Court deferred ruling on

the Commission's c3is3orgement motion to afford the o~orttmity to pursue

settl~,~r~t e~for'~s. t~.fter these efforts proved unsuccessful, the District

CAui ~ authorized 'the ~ni~sion ~:o fake a tl~irr~ deposition of t1r. Fbrma, which

occurred on Nov~►ber I1, 19 4,

A~ t~,e November 11 deposition, the Commission inquired specifically into

the amount of i~c~ F`orn~a derived from BACO's illegal options sales activity

in 1 77. During t}~rs d~pos~tion, Forma testified Chats (1) BACO owned no other

businesses ~Paat generated revenues, aril that all revenues generated by ~A~O

derives: from options sales (A340-342); {2) Fozma received compensation fran

BACO in I~77 in the amc3~t of $1,023, 75 as "wages, salaries, tips ar~d other

employee canpensation,°° as shown on his IRS Forni 1040 for 1977 (A358,3b6-367);

(3) ~o Erma clad riot rece ire periodic compensation from B.~O, of any set aanount (A388) ,

nor did he keep track of insane he received in 1977 (A390-391); rather he took

incc~ from BUJ on an "as nee9ed" basis (A359,A391); (4) BACO did rx~t change

its business procedures between 1976 and September 7, 1977, the date of tie

District Court°s injunction arisirx3 out of the related C`rA litigation as well
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as tY~e cla~e TACO closed its business operations (A343); (5) all cast► on hand

in September, 1977 derived fran BACO's options business (A342,A362); (6) P'orrna

receiv~3 canpensation for liquidating BACO after the September 7 injunction

(A343-3~4,A~49-350,A353)o (7) ztny cash Forn~a took out of BACO in 1977 weuld

have been decI.~rc-~ on his 1977 IRS individual tax return (A358).

tm Dece~e~ 11, 1984, the Commission filed with ~:he District Court a

Suppl~nental Me:~orandum in su~ort of F~try of a Specific Order of

Di~orgement ~gains~. Defendant John Forn~a, again seeking disgorganent of

$1,211,840, the amount of canpensation he received from BACO from December,

197& through T~cember, 1.978. (A324~ On April 17, 1985, Judge Gagliardi

issuiea a memorandum d~cisior~ (A405), ordering defendant FUrma to disgon~e

$1,023,375, or all tF~e a.ncarr~ he receivers foam BA~O in 1977, as evic3en~aed by

h.~s 1977 IRS 1040 return. Coaa~mvdity Fixtures Tradirx~ Commission v. British

American t qty motions Carp., 77 Civ. 1822 (I;PG) (S.D.N.Y. Apr. 17, 1985)

(A41~} In t'nis opinion, tt~e Court found that because "all of FoLma's

cca~rpensa~ion fr~n British American can be attributable to illegal conduct,

i.nclud~rag pervasive fraud and unregistered trading," the Commission did not

slave a burden to isolate portions of Foxma's income attri~autable to illegal

activities fro~a income generated from other lawful activities. (A408) 3~e

district Co~xrt further found that c~isgorgenent is an approprgate r~nec]y for

iller~al, altha~h non-~f_raur~ulent, activity, such as the registration

violations ~n this case. (.A408} The Court also found that even if Fbrma

had nc~~ been found to have engaged in unregistered FCh! activities, the fraud

h~ perpe~ra~ '°was s:~ thorough and widespread as to taint the entire enter-

~ri5e anc3 alI proce~3s flowing therefrom." (A408) T'he Court reiterated ghat

" ~ f~~ he viola~ians occurred in a r~ular, oe~anized manner as part of a profe~-
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sional~y structured system of business, and car~-~o~ be characterized as random

or isolated incidents." (A40~)

Findir~ that Fo~na's ~.mregis~ered ~'CNl activities arr3 fraudulent corx3uct,

cons~.dered irr3eperY3ently, each constituted a separate basis for di~organent,

the Court cancYuded that

t~ tse only real ~.ssue is the proper time period for which
berte~its should be disgorged. It is clear that all
inc~~ ~"oxma received fran British American in 1977, as
disclosed on Fbrma's W-2 and income tax forms
[$1,023,3°75] should be disgorged. 'Ihe evidentiary
hearings held in April arx7 May, 1977, revealer3 extensive
regulatory violations and frau9, and Forma does not
allege that between May and Septanber, 1977 (when it
ceased doing iausiness) British American ever registered
or otherwise conformed to CFTC regulations.

(A409} The Court c~ecline~, haw~ver, to order disgorgement of the incane Forma

received in Deecenber, ~976~ or in 197 ,because t~ Cor~nission hats ezot

adequately shown what portion ~rn~a's total proceeds for Dec~r►ber, 1976, were

received between ~ecen~ r 9 arYd 31, 197b, arn] because the liquida~.ion by Farm

of BACO's asses in ~trie course of winding c]awn the ccmp~ny in 1978 could have

r~rocluced ~roc~eds ~ Forma that related to a sale of assets that dated from

August, 1975. (A410)

s. ~ 'I°H''~ ~3TSTRICT BURT SID NOT ABC~E I25 DISCRETION IN
FIIVDI[~TG DISC~JRC~~IEI~ 3~0 BE AN APPROPRIP,TE R~SEDY
~R FOE~A' S REGYSTR~,TIO1J AI~iD FRAUD VIOIATIONS.

F`ornza argues ghat the District Court erred when it ordered disgorggnent

based on ~orsna's unregistered options brokerage activities because, Fbnna

con~en~3s, ~i~orgement is not availai~le as a remedy for unlawful lout not

~rau~ul~nt conduct. (Appellant's Srief ["App. Br."] at 4.) On this basis,
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Forma argues that the Court below erred by failirx,~ to require the CAmmission

to isolate the proceeds of For~aa's fraudulent corxluct Pram proceeds of his

other lawful conduct, ancl,by failing to limit the amount of c7isgorgement to

the former. (E.c., App. Br. 33.) But, as we show below, disgorgement is

plainly available to remedy, Unlawful--although norr-fraudulent--corr3uct such as

violations of registration Iawsf thtas, the Canmission was not required too

isolate one form of illegal proceeds from another

In its landmark decision, SEC v. Texas Gulf Sulphur Co., 446 F.2d 1301

(2d Cir. X971), this Oourt ruled that Section 21(e) of the Securities Exc3~Lange

Aat of 1934, which empowers the SEC too seek injunctive relief for securities

law violations, does not limit the SEC to this one ramedy, but authorizes it

also to seek to deprive the violators "of the gains of tltieir wrongful

cor~uct." Id. at 1307-08. Accord, SEC v. Commonwealth Chemical Securities,

ync., 574 F.2d 90, 95 (2d Cir. 1978); SEC v. Manor Nursing Centers, Inc., 458

F.2d 1082, 1104 (2d Cir. 1972). The standard of appellate review for

challenges to the validity of disgorgement orders is the "abuse of discretion"

starx3arc~. Ems., SEC v. Shapiro, 494 F.2d 1301, 1309 (2d Cir. 1974).

No case in which disgorgement has been ordered for securities law

violations has limited this very broad remedy to violations of antifrau~3

22/ In a3dition, because all of Fb rn►a's proceeds in 1977 were derived fran
illegal conduct---either unregistered brokerage activities or frauc'~--the Dis~-
trict Court correctly ruled that this was not the kind of case in which the
C~nmission, as proc~onent of an order for disgorgement, bore the burden of
isolating proceeds of illegal conduct from procee8s of other, lawful c~rr-
duct. All of the cases cited by the appellant (P,p~. Br. 33) which impose a
duty on the part of the proponent for an order for disgorggnent bo isolate
unlazaf'ul proceeds, involved circ~nstances where disgorganent was sought of
income from both lawful activity arx3 lawful activity. Ems., SHC v. Wills,
472 F. Supp. 1250, 1276 (D. D. C. 1978); SEC v. Galaxy Foods, 417 F. SupP-~~25
(E. D.N. Y. 1976).
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statutes or rules. In SEC v. Blavin, 760 F.2d 706 (6th Cir. 1985), an

injunctive action brought to restrain an unregistered investment advisor from

future violations of the registration provisions of the Investment Advisers

Act, as well as the antifraud provisions of the securities laws, tt~e Sixth

Circuit affirmed a ~1lstrict caart's order of diegorge~ment of the subscription

fees which the c~eferx3ant has received for unregistered advisory services. In

so rulux3, the Court 4t~served that "disgorgement orders are not limited to

confiscation of trading profits," and that "[b]ecause Blavin failed to regis-

ter with the Commission, he was prohibited from selling irivesi~ment advice, and

was not entitled to keep the fees pai.~ by subscribers to his newsletters."

706 F.2d at 713. 'Maus, the Court conclur]ed that the district court was well

within ~.ts equitable power to make registration violations unprofitable by

ordering di~orgenent of the defendant° s subscription income. Id.

,As the dis~org~nt remedy for violations of the caamodity laws is as

broad as ~'or violations of the securities laws, CF'iC v. British American

Ca~nodi~y Options Cor*~., 560 F.2d 135, 141 n. 11, every court too have

considered the issue has held that disgorgement is available to remedy

violations of the Carnnodity Exchange Act, even if unrelated to fraud. Z9ius,

in C~ v. Hunt, 591 E°. 2d 1211 (7th Cir. 1979), an injunctive action ceder

Section &c of the Act to restrain unlawful trading in excess of the

speculative position limits imposed by Commission Regulations, the Seventh

Circasit r~vers~ the district court°s refusal to grant injunctive and

dis3orgement relief, because nothing in the Acct restricted the judiciary fran

ordering dis3orgement, and because permitting "a violator to retain profit

from his [tr~ling limit] violations wr~uld frustrate the purposes of the
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regulatory scha~e." 591 F.2~ at 1223.23 Significantly, the Camnission did

mt charge that the defendants' corx~uct violated any of the antifraud

provisions of the Act or the Commission's regulations.

Other courts faced with the issue have similarly ordered disgorgement for

violations of the Act not related to fraudulent miscorx3uct. Ems., t~"iC v.

CoP~tro Marketing Group,_ Inc., 680 F.2d 573 (9th Cir. 1982) ("CoP~tro")

(ordering disgorgement for violations of Section 4 and 4h of the Act,

prohibiting the sale of off-exchange futures contracts). Accord CFTC v.

Commercial Pe trolera International S.A., [1980-1982 Transfer Binder] Caron.

Fut. Law laep. (CCH) ~ 21,222 (S. D.N.Y. 1981) (Knapp, J.) ("Petrolera")

(orderirx~ disgorgement €or der se violations o£ Sections 4 arul 4h of the

~~~,24/' ~ ~ v. American hoard of Trade, 473 F. Supp. 1177 (S. D.N.Y.

1979); id., 79 Civ. 2134 (ViLB) (Orders filed May 21, 1982 arbd .7uly 13, 1982

and July 13, 1982, and opinion filed October 1, 1981) (ordering disgorgpsnent

of proceeds derived from prohibited carnmoclity options sales in violation of

Sections 4c(b) and 4c(c) of tltie Act) .

Finally, permitting individuals to profit from violating the Art's

registration requirements wr~uld plainly thwart the important purpose of this

registration provision recognized by this Court to be the "kingpin" of the

statutory design of the Com[nor9ity bccharige Act. CFTC v. 3ritish American

Com~ciodity motions Corp., 560 F.2d 135, 139-40 (2d Cir. 1977). Because it is

23/ ~f. SAC vo Manor Nursing Centers, Inc., 458 F.2d 1082, 1104 (2d Cir.
1972); SEC v. Texas Gulf Sulphur Co., 446 F.2d 1301, 1308 (2d Cir. 1971).

24/ 7 U.S.C, ~ 6 (1976) (The violations of Section 4 of the Acct found in
CoPetro and ~trolera are analogous to the registration violations found to
have been camrnitted by Fb~na in this case. Section 4, in effect, prohibits
trading futures contracts in any canmodity which has not been designated
(i.e., registered or licensed) by the C,o~mnission as a "contract market").
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clear that disgorgement is not limited too violations of the antifraud

provisions of the Comanodity Exchange Act, but is a remedy available to correct

abuses of the Act's registration requir~nents, the District Court properly

ordered disgorgement of all of the 1977 income Forma received after January

17, 1977, the date Regulation 32.3 becane effective.

Fb rn~a argues alternatively (App. Br. 40) that the District Court should

have declined in its equitable discretion too order disgorgement for his

registration violations on the ground that his operation of an unregistered

oe~tions brokerage business had been "sanctioned" by the District Court in the

CTA litigation (see pages 7-8, supra).25~ But, as this Court stated in

reversing the District Dourt's decision in that case:

to the extent that British American's business activities
succeeded 5vhile not registered, British American has
been actin at its own peril. A court of equity is under no
duty 'to protect illegitimate profits or advance business
which is conc3uct~ illegally.'

CFTC v. British P~nerican Commodity cJptions Corp., 560 F.2d at 135, quoting,

FTC v. 'Ifia~nsen-King & Co, 109 F.2d 516, 519 (7th Cir. 1940).26 Thus, the

25/ Under Fb rnia's "sanction" argument, one wr~uld never be subject to
disgorgement for registration violations unless he is enjoined, and until he
violates the injunction. As previously shoGni, disgorgement is a proper remedy
for registered violations that precede an injunction. SEC v. Blavin, 706 F.2d
at 713; cf. CoFetro, 680 F.2d at 583-84; Petrolera, Comm. FLtt. L. Rep. (CCH) ~
21,222.

26/ Nb reover, it strains credulity for Fo ana to sate a belief that he hac7
~.he t~istrict Court's imprimatur to continue in business as an unregistered FCM
after January 17, 1977. ~e District Court certainly did not believe that its
earlier decision in the CTA litigation constituted an "imprsmatur" for BP,~O
and Fo rnia to continue in business as an unregistered FCM. 22ie District Court
specifically characterized Forma's unregistered violative conduct as
"flagrant." Comm. ~1,it. L. Rep. (CCH) ~ 7.0,662, at 22,697. f~brma was well
aware that the District Court's refusal to issue an injunction in the CTA
rroceeding h~3 been appealed to this Court by the C~rnnission arxi, therefore,
he was fully conscious that the District Court's denial of the injunction was
nod the courts' final say on the matter.
Footnote continued)
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District Court praaerly exercised its discretion in refusing tx~ protect the

illegitimate profits Forn1a received for BACA's unregistered FCM activities.27~

Entirely apart frcxn ordering the dis~or~ement of ~brma's 1977 income

receiver3 bran h~.s rec3istration violations, which, as discussed su ra, involved

aTl of the incame lac received after January 17, 1977, the Distirict Curt fo~md

Forma's pervasi~re fraudulent corx3uct to be an ir~deperx7erit basis for ordering

dis~org~nent of his 1977 insane. {A408-409) Fbxma, throughout his brief,

concedes that di:x~or3erttent is an appropriate re+nedy for fraur3ulent corx3uct.

(~. App. Bro at 34-36.) And, he does not challenge the District Court's

findirpgs tYiat he engaged in pervasive fraud as "clearly erroneous." See Fed.

R. Ci~r. F. 52(a); Sygm~ Photo News, Inc. v. High Society Magazine, 778 F.2d

89, 95-96 (2d Cir. 195) ("S~")p Jose?~h Scott Co. v. Scott S~rimming Pools,

Inc,, 764 F.2d 62, 66-67 (2d Cir. 1985}; ~Jnited States v. ,Tuno Construction

And r'orma could have had no doubt aoou~ the legality of the regulation
32.3; Forma specifically challenged the regulation in the Bagley litigation
discussed s ra, arm the District Court in Bag ley rejected this challenge on
Dec~nber 21, 1976, before BACO an3 Fo rnia bec~ne subject to the registration
requir~nen~ of Regulation 32.3.

27 Att~mptcinc~ to portray registration violations as harmless, or even
vic~iml~ss, illegal conduct, Forma also argues that BA~O's "non-registration
c?id pat cause CL1StORteY losses any more than a personal. injury can be said to
have resulte~ fran the fact that a motor vehicle was unregistered." (App. fir.
36.} even if true, a proposition that porn-registration does not cause
cust~r~er Ions is irrelevant try whether illegal income should be disgorged e
because as Erma cor~cedes (App. Br. 28.), it is not customer loss, but illegal
gain ~ the violator, that justifies an order of disgorgement. Moreover, the
hr000si~ion itself is untrue. Qistomers who entrusted their funds to Bt~O
would be justified in ass~ning that B~1C0 was registered with the Commission,
as it was required try be. Nbreover, all applicants for FQ~I registration are
subjected ~o a fitness in~uuiry prior to registration. See Section 8a(2} of
the P,~t, 7 rJ v S. Co ~ 12a (2) (Sapp. V, 1975) . C~,istomers who entrust f~mds to an
unre~is~ered violator, unaware of ids unregistered status, may have done so
upon a n~i~taken belief tY,at its broker has satisfied a7_I fitness requirenents
under ~P~ fit, ar~d this belief vx~uld certainly be a contributing factror in any
subsequent loss to the customer.
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Cor ., 759 ~`.2d 253, 255 (2d Cir. 19$5). Z!°ius, it was entirely proper for the

district Court to order Forma to disgorge the proceeds that he derived from

his fraur3ulent conduct, which a~ discussed infra, given his pervasive fraur~

and deception throughout 1977, aonounted to all the 1977 income he received

f_ rcxn BACO.

II. THE I[~OME E'ORNiP, RDCEI~D FROM BACO IN 1977 IS A PROPER

~IFASCIRE OF DISGORGE3dIEI~TP FOR HIS UNREGISTERED FCM A~:TIVITIES

F~d3)D HIS P'ERUASIV~ FRAUDULE~ ANt~ DECEPTIVE CONDUCT.

Appellant Forma also argues (App. Br. 27) that there was no nexus between

Form`s fra~x3ulent corx~uct (as opposed to his illegal, unregistered FCM

cor~uct) anc~ the amount of incane he received fran BACO in 1977, and thus he

contends that the district Court's disgorc3ement order lacks an adequate

evidentiary basis. Fiow~ver, all of Forma's 1977 BACO-related inccane

represented gain from an entirely Yllegal enterprise. On ark after a January

17, 1977, until September 7, 1977, when, following this hurt's decision in

the CTA litigation, Forrn~ closed down BACO's operations x~ernianently, BACO's

and Fdrn1a's unregistered ~tivities with respect to the marketing and sale of

Lar~]on c~anodity options were illegal in toto.2~~ All proceeds received by

Fornria during ghat period are thus s~ject try dis~orgement.
29~

28/ At P,pp. ~3r. 36, Fornna concedes that his registration violations continue
after the Icy 3, 1977 evidentiary wring. Arid, as the district court found
in Corcanodity ~litures Trading Comnissian v. British American Camnodity Options
Comer o e 422 Fo Su?~p. 622, 667-68 (S. D. N. Y. 1 7 ) (Gagliardi, J), arx~, as is
Court fourx3 in Ccr~anadity 1F~utures 'I~rrac3ing Carnnission v. British American
Commodity options Corp., 560 F.2d 135, 140-41 (2c1 Cir. 1977), BA~O and Fo~na
had been continuously actirr~ in an illegal unregistered capacity since April
16, X976.

29/ Therefore, the District Court's findi.rigs of fraud are germane to this
ao~al only t.~ the extent that they afford a basis for disgorgenPnt of Fbrma's
income franc January 1, 1977 through 3anuary 16, x.977, the period prior to the
t ~'ootr~ote continued)
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In any event, the District Court's firxiing in its aril 1985 disgorgpsnent

order that appellant Forma's fraudulent and deceptive corxiuct was "pervasive,"

as well as its findings in its 1978 opinion with respect to the specific

fraudulent activities corx3uctea by Fbrna, amply justify diegorgenent of

Fo rma' s entire 1977 incane, including the period from January 1st through

January 16th. A~ the nistr~ict Court found, Fbrma's fraudulent activities

extended to virtually all phases of BA('O's marketing and sales operations.

CFTC v. ►3ritisY~ American Cai~wdity q~tions CArp., [1977-1980 Transfer Birr]er)

Caron. Fut. L. Aep. (CCH) ~ 20,662 at 22,702-03 (S. D.N. Y. 1978). These

activities included routine misrepresentations of the risks, probable returns,

performance guarantees, commissions and mark-ups, costs, and market mechanics

of the Lortidon options offered for sale. Fb rma was also found to have falsely

held BACO out as a "licensed" or "registered" options dealer, arx3 held its

salesmen out as specialists, acid to 19ave falsely represented that B~.'0 has a

"research department" aril that BACO was along-established "wall Street"

institution. Id. at 22,698-7~h. (See pages 13-14, s ra.)30/

Ass~nning t4~at t~ was subject to disgorgement only for his fraudulent

activities, wriich, as we have shown, is an erroneous proposition, Pb nna argues

(App. Br. 43-44) that the incase he received after May 3, 1977, when the

evidentiary hearings ended, could not be the subject of disgon3ement because

there is no evic~erx:e in the record that Forn~a continued his fraudulent

effective date of the ~Q~! registration rule.

30/ Forma complains about the District Court's use of what Forntia describes as
generalized labels of "pervasive fraud" and "illegal enterprise" (App. Br.
26). Yet, he fails to challenge the evidentiary bases for any of the District
Court's findings in its 1978 Opinion in Cammodit matures Tradi Calmaission
v. British American Ccxmna3ity Options Corp., 1 7-19 Trans er Binder Conan.
fit. L. gyp. (CCH) ~( 20,662.
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activities after May 3, 1977 thraugh September ', 1977, when BA~O closed down

permanently. Yet, in its 1978 opinion, the District Court fourx~ that Fo nna

continued his "very profitable" aptions trac3fng until September 7, 1977, the

date of t}te injunction ordered try this Court in tl~ CTA litigation. Id. nt

22,706. (See paces 7-8, suprao) Fo nna also testified that BA~O did not alter

its business procedures at any time between 1976 and 5epte~nber, 1977. (A343)

Given this testimony, the 1978 fir~clings, which Forma has not challenged, and

Forma's failure hc~ allege that he ever "confopmed to CFTC regulations" between

May and September, 1977 (A409)~ the record amply smarts the Court's

firadir~ that Forma's 1977 insane derived from fraudulent activities between

Nlay ar~1 Sevt~nber x.977, and should therefore be disgorged.

next, FoxTna argues that there is no evidence in the record tyirr~ the

insane he receives from TACO during 1977 to prxeeds of the illegal conduct

chargers in t~ Camnission's canplaint. In other werds, Forma suc3gests that

the canpersation he received ~3urirng 1977 could have been ~roceec3s collected

and deferred from an zarlier period (i.e., prior to December 9, 1976) when his

activities w~rE not charged as im lawful (App. gr. 44-46). But Fbrma's own testi-

moray in the record overwhelmingly demonstrates that Forma's compensation for

his illegal activities during 1977 derived from BACO's 1977 revenues 2~ At

31/ l~ornta argues tk~t any imposition of a duty to cane forward with evidence
shc~va~r~g that he discontinued his fraudulent scheme after the May, 1977
nearirAgs mounts to an improper shifting of the burden of proof to the
opranent of a dis~orgernent order. (Apo. Br. 41-42. } The District Court did
not, however, shift the iwrden. Rather, after considering the Conenission's
presentation, which included Forma's deposition that he did riot charge BA~'0's
business procedures between 1975 and September 1977 (A343), the Court
correctly noted that ~'or~ma did not come forward with any evidence b~ the
contrary.

32/ Although ~brnra makes much of the argument that his 1977 insane could have
stemmed fran revenues generated by BA~O in 1975 and 1976, Fornia overlooks the
(Footnote continued)
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his depositions, Fbrma ~St~fl~ t~13t ~ never received dividends (A130) and

had no Eorrnal campena~tion agreement with BA~O (A139-140). Form di,~ not

receive periodic canpensation of any set amount (A388-389); rather, whatever

cash BACO received, he took (A359). He took cash from BACO on an "as needed"

basis (A391), and did not keep track of incane as he received it in 1976 or

1977 (A390-391). Any cash Forma took out of 8AC0 wnulr~ have been included on

his 1977 IRS tax return (A358). Fran this testimony, the Court properly infer

red that Fo rnza's 1977 income was ~t deferred compensation fran previous years, but

was derived from BACO°s current 1977 earni.ngs.~ Forma has not shown that this

findirxl was clearly erroneous. See, e.c~. Sygma, 778 F.2d at 95-96. bus, the

7istrict Court's finding that the $1,023,375 received in incase from BOO for

fact that it would have been illegal for hi.m to fail to declare those revenues
as income ora his 1975 and 1976 tax returns. Forma was a calendar year-basis
taxpayer, as evidenced by his 1977 IRS 1040 tax returns (A193) U.S. taxpayers
are rx~t permitted to earn unrestricted incase arr.~ then simply wait until the
next year to declare it as such. See, e. Burnet v. Sanford &Brooks, 282
tJ.S. 359, 363 (1931); 26 U.S.C. §~ 441,1 (19 ). Fbrma d riot receive
d ividends fran BA~O (A130), had no deferred compensation agreanent with BA~O
(A139-140), but took cash from BA~O whenever he needed it, arx~ as much as he
needed, (A359,A391) Thus, it was properly inferable that none of AO's
revenues were reinvested in the company, aril all such revenues were available
to Forma under the "clauci of right" doctrine. See United States v. Lewis, 340
U.~, 590, 591 (1353.); North American Oil Consolic~at v. Burnet, U.S. 417,
424 (1932). This being the case, Fo rnna was requ r to declare the expended
cash available to him at BACO in 1975 and 1976 on lais tax returns for those
years, not on his 1977 return. Absent proof to the contrary, it may be
pressed that Forntia complied with the tax laws in 1975, 1976 and 1977, and
thus the f~mds he declared as income in 1977 were presumptively received by
BA~O in 1977.

33/ Ewen if there had been no evidence that the compensation which B~:O Qaid
Fo rya for his services in 1977 derived Eras revenues earned between January 1,
1977 and September 7, T977, those ftmds would nevertheless be exclusively ill-
got~en gains in the hands of Forma, whose BA~`A~-related activities in 1977 were
entirely illegal. Forma ~stifi.ed that whatever cash he kook from BA~O in
1977, he declare on his 1977 IRS tax returns. (A358,366-367) Since these
funds r~pre~ented cam~nsation for his 1977 services (A366-367,A348-349)
rer~ered solely in connection with BP,CU's options business (A367,A340-342), it
was all illegal gain as to Forma.
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1977 was s~ject to disgorgement is fully supported b~ the record.

Forma also contends that the iriaane he received fran BP,~O after Septe~er

7, 1977 throughout the rc~nainder of 1977 should rx~t be disgorged because BA~O

had canpletely closed down its aperations durirx3 ,this period, arr] thus Fornia

was not engaged in any unlawful activities then. In deposition testimony,

however, Fornia stated ttsat after September 7, 1977, he received compensation

for winding dawn BA~O's business affairs (A348-349,A353), and that all cash

and assets on hard in September, 1977 derived Fran SACO's options business

( A341-342, A362) . He also testified that 3A~0 did not generate any additional

revenues after September 7, 1977. (A342) 'Thus, appellant's arg~n~nt amounts

simply to tY~e proposition that compensation for winding down an entirely

illegal enterprise, derived fran entirely illegal proceeds, must be consic9ered

"lawful pracee~ds" not s~jept too disgon~gnent. his Court should not indulge

app~llar~t's fiction that a violator can transform illegal proceeds into lawful

proceeds, by "lawfully" compensating himself for winding down an entirely

illegal business operation with proceeds derived from entirely illegal

corr3uct, 'The District Court did not err in this regard 4~

Finally, Forntia raises a numt~er of challenges too the 19 2 Court approved

distribution of proceeds (with accrued interest) of the $250,000 bond BACO

posted in 1977 in connection with this Court's stay of its mandate in British

American Co~mnodity Options v. Bagley, 552 F.2d 482 (2d Cir. 1977), cert.

denied, 434 U.S. 398 (1977)., None of the distributiorrrelated arguments

34/ Forma relies heavily am his deposition testimony that part of BACO's
assets existing as of Septe~er 7, 1977, derived from 1975 and 1976 as w~e11 as
1977. (App. fir. 44.) The District Qourt has alrea3y accepted this testimo~
~y declining to order Fbrnia to disgorge the $175,995 he declared as canpensa-
tion iron BP,CO in 1978 (A410,A250), thus ~indi.ng that procee8s of the sale of
BA~O's pre--1977 assets were limited too that amount.
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advanced by Fb rnna is a proper subject for this appeal. k'orma wr~s required by

R►ale 3 (c) of the Federal Rules of Appellate Procedure too c3esignabe in his

notice of appeal "the judgment, order or part thereof appealed from." In his

entice of. meal (Al), Pbrn~a ~3esignatec7 only the judgment entered Ntmy 8, 1985,

which pertained only to the District Qourt's aril 17, 1985 order directing

Fo rnia to disgorge all of his 1977 income. Neither his notice of appeal (or

his ore-argument statement filed by current camsel (A3)) rna~e any designation

of the District Court's December 15, 1982, consent order distributing BA~O's

nroce~is to former BACO customers as a s~ject that tie wished to be reviewed

by this Court. By failing, 'explicitly or implici~tlyy to notify this Court and

the Commission of its apQellate objections to the manner in rich funds were

distributed to fo rnier BA~O custaners in 1982, Fornia manifested an intention to

leave the 1982 distribution ~mdisturbed. See, e. ., Z~erkildsen v. Waters, 481

F.2d 201, 206 (2d Cir. 1973); see also Conway v. Village of bunt Risco, 750

F.2d 205, 211 (2d Cir. 1984). 'It~us, none of Forn~a's arguments about the 1982

distribution is a proper subject for this appeal.

In any event, none of these arguments has any merit. In challenging the

1982 court-approved c3istri.bution, Forces first argues that the custaner claims

verification procedure utilized by the ~aeceiver, and approved by the District

Court, in determining who would participate in the distribution of these

assets did not yield sufficient proof that each of the customers who had filed

clai...ns had been defrauded by BP,~O and k~ornia. (App. Br. 28,43.) This arg~anent

is prenised mainly on what we have already shown (see gages 21-24, s ra) to

be Fo rn►a's mistaken assumption that registration violations alone cannot

sustain the imposition of a receivership anr] an equitabYe distribution to



- 32 -

persons wt►o lost money as a result of entrusting money to tihe ~registere~

violator. See SEC v. Blavin, 760 F.2d 706, 713 (6th Cir. 1985). These

customer claimants were entitled to participate in the Receiver's 1982

distribution of B~0's assets because of the nistrict Court's fir~dir~g that

~ACC3 acted in an illegal ~:mregistered capacity after January 17, 1977. Shat

f iir.3 ing alor~ would enable BACU' s customers t~ share in the funds to be

d is~ributed, based soYely upon proof that they invested funds with BAC,'O while

it c~as o~ratirx3 illegally.

Given the District Court's finding that BACO engaged in widespread and

pervasive fra~r3, all custarners who invested with BACO from December 9, 1976

through ^~pts~mher 7, 1977 were, in any event, entitled to share in the

distrihution, without the need for an aral evider►tiary procedure requiring

each of the 199 custaners to testify as to each element of a fraud claim.

'I~us, there is rao basis for Fbzma's argument that the undistributed portion of

the finds held 17y the 3~ceiver should be returned to Forma.
35/

Next, Fo rnga argues that it was error for the District Court to consider

proof of BA~O°~ customers' out of-pocket loss in determining the amount of

assets to be c~istriauted to BA~.~;'0's former customers, because only gain ~ the

violater, n~s~ lass to t~~e victi.rn, is relevant to the proper measure of

~iisgorc~anent. (pp~. Bro 29.) But the $1,476,484.10 in customer losses, see

note 19, supra, wire directly relevant to the Receiver's pro rata distribution

35/ Even if na former BACO customers had been located to share in a
~~ tribution, arX3 tfiere har3 been no distribution in the nature of restitution,
Fo nna, as sole shareholder of t3AC0, wnuld not be entitled to a return of these
asses, for that would uncle rnline the deterrence policies to be furthered by
ordering dis~on3~nent of ~^O. ~., SEA v. Manor I3ursang Centers, Inc., 458
F.2d 1G82, 1I04 (2~ Cir. 1972); SEC v. Texas Gulf Sul ur Co., 446 F.2d 1301,
1308 (2d Cir. 1971}; SF~ v. Golcor~a M Wing Co., ~ F. app. 257, 259
(S. D. N. Y. 1971}.
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in 1982 because the record demonstrates that this distribution was not in fact

disgorgement of BAC:O; rather, it was equitable relief in the nature of restitu-

tion.36~ In seeking court approval of the distribution of BACO's assets, the

Receiver did not expressly seek disgorgement of either of BP,~O or Form. (A37-

83) And Forma in 1983 clearly indicated that he did not consider the 1982

distribution ~o be disgorgement of 8~C0. (A272-274) Even if the distribution

could be considered disgon~anent, which it was not, Eb rnna did not object to it

on the basis that it was improper to consider the amount of loss try the

victim, as opposed to lawful gain to the violater. (A84-95,A115-121)37

Next, Forma argues that the Catunission presente9 no evidence showing that

tY~e $250,000 bond posted in connection with 8A~0's appeal to the Suprgne Court

36/ In its a~nnerr3ed complaint, the Camnission sought, in addition to injuno-
tive relief arn~ disgorgement "[s] uch other arr3 further relief as the Court may
determine ~a be just, equitable and necessary in connection with fhe enforce-
rtaent of the federal carnnoc~ities laws." (A20) In its July 29, 1980, order
appointing Thomas Fi3an as permanent Receiver, the District Court specifically
authorized the Receiver to seek restitution for customers. (A67)

37/ Forma canplains that it vas improper for the :.aRunission to present
evidence relative to Forma's present financial circunstances arx] ability to
tray a disgorgsnent award, because such infornnation is irrelevant too the
q~estioz~ of disgorgement. (Ap~~. Bro 45.) Yet, it is clear that the
Commission's inquiry intm Mr. ~brma's personal finances did not relate t~ the
question of the proper measure of disgorgement. Rather, the Can~nission
exaQnined Forma as to his financial circumstances solely to alleviate concern
expressed by the Court arx9 the Receiver that proceedings to collect
di~om~ement proceeds fran Forma might prove unduly costly to the
receivershipm (A295-298)

In direct contra9iction too his argument that a violator's ability to pay
is rat relevant to whether disgorgement should be ordered (App. Br. 45), kb~
ar3ues that the District Court should not have ordered disgorgenent against
him because "he does not have sufficient assets to satisfy such an order or
any part thereof." (App. Br. 450) Aside from the conceded irrelevancy of
this arg~nnent to the propriety of disgorgpsnent, see App. Br. 45, the
Commission has already demonstrated in the Distr ci t Court that the appellant
had ample financial resources with which too satisfy a disgorgenent order.
(A141-268)
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in Bagley litigation rep~esentec3 ftmds d~raved Iran ~laraful ~nduc~ bran

December 9, 197b through Septgnber 7, 1977. Thus, :ze argues that these assets

of ~3t-+~0 could not be subject Y~ r~i.sgorgement. BA~O posted the $250 000 bond

an or about Jur►e 14, I9'~7, near the end of its illegal business activities,

whici~ corfcluded i~ early Se~~nber, I977. (A43) The timing of this bond

payment alone sup~rts an inference that the $250,000 derived fran incase

~arnec~ i~ B~GCS in 1977.

In any e~rer~~, ~b~ti~a waives and objection t~ the alleged lack of e~ridence

showirr~ that the $250,000 bond derived Eras unlawful 1 77 incase, because: (1)

in March 1979, ~3ACa ar~d Forma stipulated to the release of these f~d~ to the

cus~cxl~' of tt~ Receiver (A44), demonstrating by phis cor~uct that they believed

that these f~c~~ were illegally obtained assets subject to the receiver--

shi~;~~~ (2) prier to thz actual distribation in December, 1982, Forma failed

to object to the Receiver°s proposed distribution on the gro~mds of alleged

uzsu~giciency of proof that the fur~is to be distributed derived fran iTlec3al

cor~suct (A84-96,A115-it3.); anc3 (~) Forma expressly gave his written consent too

the 7~~ distribution of BACO's assets in December, 1982. (A122-123) Had

Fo rnta mac3~ this evidentiary ob~eetion before he consented ~ the distribution,

tt~ Comrnissxor► coulu3 have takes additional det~ositions of Forma to show that

these funds derived from illegal corx~uct in 1977. Forma is thus precluded fran

38J Forma ca:iplains that he paid inca~me taxes on his 1977 BP,Cc~-related
inca~, arra therefore, should riot :~e required to disgorge his pre-tax incase
for 1977. (App. Br. 27.) The payment of Z9?7 taxes on such incase was
mandatory' b~;ause Fbrma received it urx3er a "claim of right." See, ems... o
North American Oil Conso~.idated v. ~rnet, 286 U.S. 417, 424 (1 3~L). ~7nce.
Fbrna satisfies the District Court s disgcargement order, he may take a
deluccion from his gross income in s~hatever year he disgorges his illegal 19'17
incor~. Zd.
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making this objection tyre by laches a►u] estoppel, as well as by we►3ver. 39

This Court should not overturn the court approved distributic~n of BA~O's

assets on the basis of ar► evidentiary objection not presented to the District

Court in a timely fashion._ E.ci. Terkildsen v. Waters, 481 F.2d 201, 204-05

(2d Czr. I973).40/

3 9/ Fo Ana also argues that because he "was the sole owner of BA~O's stock,
[an~~ own~3 all contaany assets, the receiver's taking of $414,000
in BACO funds i~ tantamount to disgon~ement by Fb rma itself." (App. Br.
46. ) 5ee note 17, sup~ca. ~br triis reason, Fbrnla claims that the ur~distri-
buted portion of such fads should be returned bo hi.m. (P,pp. Br. 46.) Yet,
Forma concedes tT7at the concept behind the District Court's freeae and distri-
pution of those assets was reimbursement to customers with claims against
BACO, a rer~~dy in nature of restitution. (App. Br. 46.) As already disc
cussed, the Receiver dick not apply for disgorgenent of BACO (A37-48), nor did
Forma consider the aistri.bution of BA~C)'s assets to be dis~on3e~ent. (A272-
274)

Regardless of whetter the 1982 distribution is to be considered restit~r-
tion or c~i~org~ent of 'TACO, it clearly was not di~gon~~nent of Forma per-
sonally. Forma deliberately chose the corpc~rat.~ form of doing business.
Forrrr~ 3~as made rx> argument that he is willing to assume personal liability for
alb. outst~r~irgg customer claims against BA~O, which sti1~. exceed one million
dollars. (Only $256,594.30 out of $1,476,484.10 has been returned to fo rnier
f3AC0 customers ~o have filed valir3 verified claims with the Receivers xe
rotes 17 and 19, supra) In any event, the equitable doctrine of "piercing the
corporate veil" cannot be invoked to protect v~rangdoers. Etc., Schenley
Distillers Corp, v. United States, 326 U.S. 432, 436-37 (1946); NLRB v. Miller
Trucki Service, Inc., 445 F.2d 927, 930 (10th Cir. 1971); DeSilva Construe-
tioTn C~ v. Her- raid, 213 ~', Ste. 184, 193 (M. D. Fla. 1962).

And, Forn~a makes no corivincirx7 argument why, even if the distribution to
forr~er BACO custcxner in ~ecenk~r, 1982, were considered to be tantaano~t to
c~is~o~gement of Fo ~a personally, he should not be required to disgory~ those
~ditional mounts since they constituted unlawful revenues to BACO. See
pages 34-35, supra. It is clear that these proceeds ire not dec3.ared on his
2977 tax return because k'orma testified that he never received them (A363),
and that ohs cash he received fran BACO in 1977 was declared on his 1977
individual IRS return. ;A358,366-367}.

40/ See also ScP~nidt v. L~lish People's 1~public, 742 F.2d 67, 70 (2d Cir.
~98~y; Vintero Corp. v. Corp~racian venezolana De Fo~nenfi.~, 675 F.2d 513, 515
(2d Cir. 1982; bin v. Manufacturers Hanover Trust Co., 661 F.2d 979, 996
(2d Cir. 198I); R~ ix organization, Inc. v. Mack Trucks, Inc., 602 F.2d 45, 48(2d Cir. 1975)0
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~°inally, Forma argues that the "taking of his property through a

disgorgement order without a full-scale evidentiary hearing to accurately

determine the proper level of disgon~ement" violates the Due Process Clause of

the Fifth Amendment to the United States Constitution. (App. Br. 47.) Yet,

Fo ana har] three opportrm ities to present evidence relative to the proper level

of disgorgement at the depositions h~1~3 on January 14, 1983, April 13, 1983,

and November 11, 1984. {A125,A137,A336) All of these depositions were held

to determine the appropriate amount of disgorgement. At these depositions,

Forma could have arranged to be examined by his own counsel to present facts

riot brought to light by the Carnnission's exaani.nation. In presenting proof

relative to the proper amount of disgon~enent, the Co~mnission relied solely

upon Forma's testimony at these depositions aixl upon docwnents ar~d records

produc~3 b~ Fbrna pursuant ~ an order compelling pror]uction. 7.hus, there

coup ire r~ genuine issue of material fact necessitating afull-scale oral

evidentiary hearing. Cf. Fed. R Civ. P. 56. Because Forma does not

challenge the District Court's 1978 evidentiary firx3ings of flagrant

registration violations and pervasive fraud, and because the Commission has

pror]uced sufficient evidence ~o warrant disgorgement of Forma's 1977 BACO-

.related incane aru3 Fozma has ha8 apple opportunities to contest that proof,

the District Court's order of disgorgement does riot violate Forma's due

process rights.

The District Court acted well within its broad discretion in concluding

that appellant's illegal unregistered activities, as we.il as his fraudulent

and deceptive options practices, could independ~tly sport an order of
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disgon~enent against John Forma. 'Ihe record apply sports the District

Court's conclusion that all of John Ebrma's incase from BP,~O received in 1977,

or $1,023,375, derived from lawful activities. Accordingly, the C~ortnmission

respectfully requests that this Court affirm the District Court's May 8, 1985,

judgment in all respects.

Respectfully submitti~ed,

EDWARD S. (~LDER"IANN
Attorney

commodity Ei~tures Trading Camanission
2033 K Street, N.W.
snTashington, D.C. 20581
(202) 254-9880

D~tedl: February 26, 1986
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